| Al Meezan| AM1

Investment Management Ltd.

Rating by VIS & PACRA

DRIVING

[

[

I

]
SUCCESS |
WITH SHARIAH I Meezan Rozana

Amdani Fund eSars
PRINCIPLES e o

The investment objective of the
At Al Meezan, we drive success by fund is to meet liquidity needs of

adhering to Shariah principles, ensuring all investors by providing investors a
investments align with Islamic law. This daily payout through investment in
blend of ethics and modern financial Shariah Compliant money market
practices provides profitable, principled instruments.
solutions, allowing clients to achieve their

financial goals while staying true to their

values.
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Pue. Profit. REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund (MRAF)

Type of Fund
Open end money market fund investing primarily in Shariah compliant money market and Islamic bonds
(Sukuks).

Objective
Its objective is to meet liquidity needs of investors by providing investors a daily pay out through
investment in Shariah Compliant money market instruments.

Investment Policy and Strategy

The fund provides investors with the opportunity to park their excess liquidity in secure high-quality
instruments. To minimize the impact of interest rate volatility, the investment policy limits the
investment avenues to short term tenors. As per its investment policy, MRAF can invest or place funds in
instruments/avenues with a credit rating of at least 'Double A' (AA). Moreover, the investment policy
limits interest rate risk by capping the maturity of instruments up to a maximum of six months, along
with maximum portfolio weighted average time to maturity of three months.

Asset Allocation for the year ended FY23 and FY24

o -
80% 71%

mJun'24 mJun'23  60%

60%

40%

20%

0%
Commercial Paper Placement with Banks Cash & Other Including
receiveables

Performance Review
Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund (MRAF) provided a positive return of 21.50% to its investors for the year ended
June 30, 2024 as compared to its Six Month deposits at Islamic Banks (benchmark) return of 10.28%.

Six Month deposits
at Islamic Banks
MRAF (Benchmark)
Net Asset Value as on June 30,2023 50.00
Net Asset Value as on June 30, 2024 50.00
Return During the Period - Net 21.50% 10.28%
Outperformance - Net 11.23%

Benchmark: 3 Month average deposit rate of 3 AA rated Islamic Banks
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The Fund earned a gross income of Rs. 21,349 million, which was primarily due to profit on bank deposits,
placements and Sukuks amounting to Rs. 21,349 million. The fund also incurred expenses totalling to Rs.
1,170 million, which brought the net income figure to Rs. 20,179 million. The net assets of the Fund as at
June 30, 2024 were Rs. 114,606 million as compared to Rs. 96,006 million at the end of last year depicting
increase of 19%. The net asset value per unit as at June 30, 2024 was Rs. 50 (Ex-dividend).

Distributions
The total pay-out by the Fund during the year ended June 30, 2024 was Rs. 9.76 per unit (19.52%). Total
distribution made by the fund was Rs. 20,179 million.

SWWEF Disclosure
Not Applicable

Fund Stability Rating
VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned Stability Rating of AA+ (f) to the Fund.

Breakdown of unit holdings by size
(As on June 30, 2024)

Range (Units) No. of investors

1-9,999 2,348
10,000 - 49,999 4,220
50,000 - 99,999 1,616
100,000 - 499,999 2,067
500,000 and above 521
Total 10,772




Jamia Darul Uloom Karachi
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Dr. Muhammad Imran Usmani  Postal Code 75150

Tel: +92 21 35123225
Fax: +92 21 5040234
Email: miu786@amail.com

Report of the Shariah Advisor — Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund (MRAF)
July 23, 2024/Muharram 16, 1446 AH

Alhamdulillah, the period from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 was the Sixth year of operations of
Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund (the “MRAF” or the “Fund”) under management of Al Meezan Investment
Management Limited (the “Al Meezan” or the “Management Company”). |, Dr. Muhammad Imran Ashraf
Usmani, am the Shariah Advisor of the Fund and issuing the Shariah Advisor Report (the “Report”) in
accordance with the Trust Deed of the Fund. The scope of the Report is to express an opinion on the Shariah
compliance of the Fund’s activity.

It is the responsibility of the Management Company of the Fund to establish and maintain a system of internal
controls to ensure Shariah compliance with the Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to express an opinion,
based on our review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Management Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by
the Management Company to comply with the prescribed criteria.

We have reviewed and approved the modes of investments of the Fund in light of Shariah requirements. On the
basis of information provided by the Management Company, all operations of the Fund for the year ended June
30, 2024 have been in compliance with the Shariah principles.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that all the provisions of the scheme and investments made on account of
the Fund under management of Al Meezan are Shariah-compliant and in accordance with the criteria established
by us.

We further confirm that earnings realized through prohibited sources were transferred to the charity account
(where applicable).

May Allah bless us with the best Tawfeeq to accomplish His cherished tasks, make us successful in this world
and in the Hereafter, and forgive our mistakes.

And Allah knows the best.
k

Dr. Muhammad Imran Ashraf Usmani
Shariah Advisor
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
MEEZAN ROZANA AMDANI FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and Clause 8 of Schedule V of the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of Meezan Rozana
Amdani Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that Al Meezan Investment Management Limited
being the Management Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund
during the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(i)  The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund;

(iii)  The management fee, fee payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) and other expenses paid from the Fund during the period are in accordance with
the applicable regulatory framework; and

(iv)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

For the attention of unit holders, during an onsite inspection of the Management Company, the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) identified certain matters related to
the charging and allocation of selling and marketing expenses to the Fund. Accordingly, the
Management Company, following the guidance and interpretation provided by the SECP, has
issued units to an amount of Rs. 40.57 million to the entitled unit holders.

]
4
M{ M”’
Badiuddin Akbgr
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 25, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Unit holders of Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund (the Fund), which comprise the
statement of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2024, and the income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of movement in unit holders’ fund and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Fund as at June 30, 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Following is the key audit matter:

S. No. : Key Audit Matter : - Howthe niatter was adflressed in our audit

1 Net Asset Value
(Refer notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements)

Investments and balances with banks constitute | Our audit procedures amongst others included the
the most significant component of the net asset | following:

value. Investments of the Fund as at June 30,
2024 amounted to Rs. 79,076.60 million and
balances with banks aggregated to Rs. 38,099.17

* Obtained independent confirmations for verifying
the existence of the investment portfolio and
balances with banks as at June 30, 2024 and traced

million. it with the books and records of the Fund. Where
The existence and proper valuation of such confirmations were not available, alternate
investments and existence of balances with banks audit procedures were performed;

for the determination of NAV of the Fund as at
June 30, 2024 was considered a high risk area and
therefore we considered this as a key audit matter.

= Re-performed valuation to assess that investments
are carried as per the valuation methodology
specified in the accounting policies; and

= Obtained bank reconciliation statements and tested
reconciling items on a sample basis.

ks

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, LI. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www.pwec.com/pk>

= KARACHI « LAHORE = ISLAMABAD
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2023 were audited by another firm of
Chartered Accountants who had expressed an unmodified opinion thereon vide their report dated
September 26, 2023.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Management Company for
the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors of the Management Company is responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.

kyr
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with board of directors of the Management Company regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide board of directors of the Management Company with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with board of directors of the Management Company, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion the financial statements have been prepared in all
material respects in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Khattab Muhammad Akhi Baig.

Kt juon- 4 Co.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Dated: September 16, 2024
Karachi

UDIN: AR202410081MgsXvrl5P



MEEZAN ROZANA AMDANI FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

Assets

Balances with banks

Investments

Receivable against conversion of units
Profit receivable

Advances, deposits and prepayments
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs
Total assets

Liabilities

Payable to Al Meezan Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
Payable against conversion and redemption of units

Dividend payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets
Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached)

Contingencies and commitments

Number of unifs in issue

Net asset value per unit

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

10
11
12

13

14

For Al Meezan Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

ANNUAL REPORT JUNE-2024 57

Fund
2024 2023
-—----Rupees in '000'-------

38,099,169 65,893,238
79,076,598 28,750,000
19,985 865,887
3,208,721 1,397,915
38,320 2,314
- 100
120,442,793 96,909,454
73,604 114,814
6,474 4,928
7,908 16,699
5,337,964 375,827
111,627 149,178
298,834 242 401
5,836,411 903,847
114,606,382 96,005,607
114,606,382 96,005,607

(Number of units)

2,292,127,750  1,920,112,094
(Rupees)
50.0000 50.0000
Director

Meezan

Rozana Amdani
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MEEZAN ROZANA AMDANI FUND Fund

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note -------Rupees in '006"-------

Income

Profit on sukuk certificates 3,959,647 1,118,816
Profit on term deposit receipts and certificates of musharakah 7,611,657 3,870,391
Profit on Bai muajjal 58,363 582,502
Profit on savings accounts with banks 9,719,731 8,211,188
Net realised loss on sale of investments (40,951) (3,200)

21,308,447 13,779,697
Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments

classified as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6.5 40,604 -

Total income 21,349,051 13,779,697
Expenses
Remuneration of Al Meezan Investment Management Limited - Management

Company 10.1 664,452 315,173
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 10.2 86,379 40,973
Selling and marketing expenses 10.3 271,837 205,343
Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 11.1 56,933 45,923
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 11.2 7,401 5,870
Fees to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 12.1 77,634 16,699
Auditors' remuneration 15 633 546
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and flotation costs 9 100 200
Fees and subscription 1,344 1,313
Brokerage expense 2,243 940
Bank and settlement charges 789 4,101
Printing charges 72 92
Other miscellaneous expenses 542 -
Total expenses 1,170,359 637,273
Net income for the year before taxation 20,178,692 13,142,424
Taxation 17 - -
Net income for the year after taxation 20,178,692 13,142,424

Alocation of net income for the year
Net income for the year after taxation 20,178,692 13,142,424
Income already paid on units redeemed

~ 20,178,692 13,142,424

Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains - -
- Excluding capital gains 20,178,692 13,142,424
20,178,692 13,142,424
The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For Al Meezan Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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MEEZAN ROZANA AMDANI FUND
Fund

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
-------Rupees in '000'-------

Net income for the year after taxation 20,178,692 13,142,424

Other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 20,178,692 13,142,424

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Al Meezan Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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MEEZAN ROZANA AMDANI] FUND

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS’ FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Net assets at the beginning of the year

{ssuance of 4,731.204,015 (2023: 5,049,054,418) units

- Capital value (at par value per unit at
the beginning of the year)
- Element of income
Total proceeds on issuance of units

Meezan

Rozana Amdani

Redemption of 4,359,188,359 (2023: 4,584,141,070) units

- Capital value (at par value per unit at
the beginning of the year)
- Element of income
Total payments on redemption of units

Total comprehensive income for the year
Distribution during the year*
Net income for the year less distribution

Net assets at the end of the year

Undistributed income brought forward
- Realised income
- Unrealised income

Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

Distribution during the period*
Undistributed income carried forward

Undistributed income carried forward
- Realised income
- Unrealised income

Net assets value per unit at the beginning of the year

Net assets value per unit at the end of the year

Fund
2024 2023
Capital Value Unqistrlbuted Total Capital Value Unthstnbuted Total
income income
RR— ——(Rupees in '000) T LR L) —
96,005,607 - 96,005,607 72,759,939 - 72,759,939
236,560,200 - | 236,560,200 || 252,452,721 - | 252,452,721
236,560,200 - 236,560,200 252,452,721 - 252,452,721
(217,959,425) - 1(217,959,425){| (229,207,053) - 1(229,207,053)
(217,959,425) - (217,959,425) (229,207,053) - (229,207,053)
- | 20,178,692 | 20,178,692 - | 13,142,424 | 13,142,424
- 1(20,178,692)] (20,178,692) - 1(13,142,424)| (13,142,424)
114,606,382 - 114,606,382 96,005,607 - 96,005,607

20,178,692

20,178,692

(20,178,692)

(Rupees)
50.0000

50.0000

13,142,424

13,142,424

(13,142,424)

{Rupees)
50.0000

50.0000

*Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund is required to distribute dividend on a daily basis on each business day. The cumulative distribution per unit for
the year ended June 30, 2024 amounted to Rs. 9.7579 (2023: Rs. 7.7726) per unit.

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Al Meezan Investment Management Limited

Chief Executive Officer

(Management Company)

S

Chief Financial Officer

Director
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MEEZAN ROZANA AMDANI FUND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year before taxation

Adjustment for non-cash items:

Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments classified
as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'

Increase in assets

Investments - net

Profit receivable

Advances, deposits and prepayments

Increase in liabilities

Payable to Al Meezan Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts against issuance and conversion of units - net of refund of capital
Payments against redemption and conversion of units

Dividend paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Meezan

Rozana Amdani

For Al Meezan Investment Management Limited

{(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Pure, prof™ Fund
Note 2024 2023
=emmmemma-(RUpeeES in '000)-----ouumr
20,178,692 13,142,424
100 200
6.5 (40,604) -
20,138,188 13,142,624
(36,415,274) 175,000
(1,810,8086) (575,750)
(36,006) (1,014)
(38,262,086) (401,764)
(41,210) 111,414
1,646 1,818
(8,791) 6,333
56,433 158,582
7,978 278,147
(18,115,920) 13,019,007
237,406,102 251,999,517 |
(212,997,288)| |(229,134,990)
(20,216,243) (12,993,246)
4,192,571 9,871,281
(13,923,349) 22,890,288
90,493,238 67,602,950
19 76,569,889 90,493,238
Director
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Rozana Amdani
Fund

MEEZAN ROZANA AMDANI FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Pure, proft

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed executed between Al Meezan
Investment Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Trust Deed was executed under the trust act on October 29, 2018 and was
approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) and the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations). The Management Company has been
granted license by the SECP to act as an Asset Management Company under the NBFC Rules through a
certificate of registration issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Management Company of the Fund is
situated at Ground Floor, Block 'B’, Finance and Trade Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi 74400, Pakistan.

In the year 2021, the Trust Act, 1882 was repealed due to the promulgation of Provincial Trust Act namely “Sindh
Trusts Act, 2020” (the Sindh Trust Act). Accordingly, on August 16, 2021 the above-mentioned Trust Deed has
been registered under the Sindh Trust Act.

1.2 The investment objective of the Fund is to meet liquidity needs of investors by providing investors a daily payout
through investment in Shariah Compliant money market instruments. Under the Trust Deed, all the conducts and
acts of the Fund are based on Shariah principles. Meezan Bank Limited (MBL) acts as its Shariah Advisor to
ensure that the activities of the Fund are in compliance with the principles of Shariah. The investment objectives
and policies are explained in the Fund's offering document.

1.3 The Fund is an open-end Shariah Compliant Money Market Scheme and has the following specific features:

(a) Dividend will be distributed to the entitled unit holders on a daily basis (i.e. each business day); and
(b) Daily dividend received by the unit holders shall be reinvested.

By distributing dividend on a daily basis, the Management Company is required to ensure that total distribution in
an accounting period accumulates to an amount that is required under the tax laws and other regulations in force.

1.4 Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable and can be redeemed by
surrendering them to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

1.5 The Management Company has been assigned a quality rating of 'AM1’ by VIS Credit Rating Company Limited
dated December 29, 2023 (2022: 'AM1' dated December 30, 2022) and by PACRA dated June 21, 2024 (2023:
'AMT' dated June 23, 2023). The rating reflects the Company's experienced management team, structured
investment process and sound quality of systems and processes. The Fund has been given a stability rating of
AA+(f) by VIS Credit Rating Company Limited dated December 27, 2023 (2023: AA+(f) dated January 03, 2023).

1.6 The title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the
Trustee of the Fund.

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The transactions undertaken by the Fund are in accordance with the process prescribed under the Shariah
guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisor and are accounted for on substance rather than the form prescribed by
the earlier referred guidelines. This practice is being followed to comply with the requirements of the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the
requirements of the Trust Deed.
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Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repeated Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC
Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

Pure_proft

3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are
effective in the current year

There are certain amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that are mandatory for the
Fund's annual accounting period beginning on July 1, 2023. However, these are not considered fo be relevant or did
not have any material effect on the Fund's financial statements and have, therefore, not been disclosed in these
financial statements except that during the year certain amendments to I1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements'
have become applicable to the Fund which require entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. These amendments to IAS 1 have been introduced to help entities
improve accounting policy disclosures so that they provide more useful information to investors and other primary
users of the financial statements. These amendments have been incorporated in these financial statements with the
primary impact that the material accounting policy information has been disclosed rather than the significant
accounting policies.

3.3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet
effective

There are certain new standards and amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that will be
applicable to the Fund for its annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2024. However, these are not considered to
be relevant or did not have any material effect on the Fund's financial statements except for:

- The new standard - IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (IFRS 18) (published in April
2024) with applicability date of January 1, 2027 by IASB. IFRS 18 when adopted and applicable shall impact the
presentation of ‘Income Statement® with certain additional disclosures in the financial statements; and

- Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ which clarify the date of recognition and derecognition of a
financial asset or financial liability including settiement of liabilities through banking instruments and channels
including electronic transfers. The amendment when applied may impact the timing of recognition and
derecognition of financial liabilities.

3.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates, judgments and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resulis of which form the basis of making
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if revision affects both current and future
years.

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Fund relate to
classification and valuation of financial assets (notes 4.4 and 6).

3.5 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for investments classified
as 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' which are measured at their respective fair values.

3.6 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Fund operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Fund's
functional and presentation currency.

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1 The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been applied consistently to all the years.
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These comprise balances with banks in savings and current accounts and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

4.3 Bai Muajjal

Bai Muajjal transactions represent sales of Sukuks on a deferred payment basis. The difference between the
deferred payment amount receivable and the carrying value at the time of sale is accrued and recorded as income
over the term of the transaction.

4.4 Financial assets
4.4.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at
'fair value through profit or loss'. Financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are recognised in the Income Statement.

4.4.2 Classification and subsequent measurement
a) Debt instruments
IFRS 9 has provided a criteria for debt securities whereby these debt securities are either classified as:

- amortised cost;
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and
- at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

based on the business model of the entity.

However, IFRS 9 also provides an option whereby securities managed as a portfolio or group of assets and whose
performance is measured on a fair value basis, to be recognised at FVVPL. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value
information and uses that information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions. Therefore, the
management considers its investment in debt securities as being managed as a group of assets and hence has
classified them as FVPL.

b) Impairment (other than debt securities)

The fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The fund recognises loss allowances for such losses at each reporting date.
The measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
- the time value of money; and

- reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Fund considers that a financial asset is in default when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments
within 90 days of when they fall due. Further, financial assets are written off by the Fund, in whole or part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

c) Impairment loss on debt securities

Provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of time-based criteria as prescribed by the SECP
and based on management's assessment made in line with its provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors
of the Management Company in accordance with the guidelines issued by the SECP. Impairment losses recognised
on debt securities can be reversed through the Income Statement.

As allowed by the SECP, the Management Company may make provision against debt securities over and above the
minimum provision requirement prescribed by the SECP, considering the specific credit and financial condition of the
debt security issuer and in accordance with the provisioning policy duly approved by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. The provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors has also been placed on the
Management Company's website as required under the SECP's circular.

4.4.3 Regular way contracts

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date on which the
Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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4.4.4 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss
on derecognition of financial assets is taken to the Income Statement.

4.5 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. These are initially recognised at fair values and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of financial liabilities is taken to the Income Statement.

4.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 'Statement of Assets and
Liabilities’ when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.7 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

4.8 Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by dividing
the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in circulation at the year end.

4.9 Issuance and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received
by the Management Company / distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the Net
Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at the close of the business day, plus the allowable sales load, provision of any duties
and charges and provision for transaction costs, if applicable. The sales load is payable to the Management
Company / distributors.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price prevalent on the date on which the Management Company
receives subscription amount during business hours on that date. The redemption price represents NAV as on the
close of business day, less any duties, taxes, charges on redemption and provision for transactions costs, if
applicable.

410 Distributions to unit holders

Distributions to the unit holders are recognised upon declaration by the Management Company. Based on the Mutual
Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented by the SECP, distribution for the year also
includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the year. As more fully explained in note 1.3 to the
financial statements, the Fund is required to make distribution on each business day.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the year in which such distributions are declared and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Management Company.

411 Element of income / {loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units
redeemed

Element of income represents the difference between Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit on the issuance or redemption
date, as the case may be, of units and the NAV per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further,
the element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to
unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend NAV of all units outstanding on the accounting date,
net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders' fund is refunded on units in the same
proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.
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412 Revenue recognition

- Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are recognised on the date at which the transaction takes place;

- Profit on bank deposits and term deposit receipts is recognised on time proportion basis using the effective
yield method;

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' are recorded in the period in which these arise;

- Income on sukuk certificates, certificates of musharakah, term deposits receipts and government securities is
recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective yield method except for the securities which are
classified as non-performing asset under Circular 33 of 2012 issued by the SECP for which the profits are
recorded on cash basis

- Income on bai muajjal is recognised on time proportion basis, the difference between the sale and the credit
price is recognised over the credit period.

413 Expenses

All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remuneration of the Management Company and Trustee and annual
fee of the SECP are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

414 Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxes after taking into account tax
credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax is calculated using the prevailing tax rates.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. The deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the differences reverse, based on enacted tax rates.

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders. Furthermore, for the
purpose of determining distribution of at least 90 percent of the accounting income, the income distributed through
bonus units shall not be taken into account.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

415 Earnings/ (loss) per unit

Earnings / (loss) per unit is calculated by dividing the net income / (loss) of the year after taxation of the Fund by the
weighted average number of units outstanding during the year.

Earnings / (loss) per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as, in the opinion of the management, the determination of
cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

448 Foreign currency translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates for monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement.
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Note 2024 2023
5 BALANCES WITH BANKS {Rupees in '000)
Balances with banks in:
Savings accounts 5.1 37,999,127 65,693,195
Current accounts 5.2 100,042 200,043

38,099,169 65,893,238

5.1 These includes balance maintained with Meezan Bank Limited (a related party) that has an expected profit rate of
11.01% (2023: 10.00%) per annum. Other savings accounts of the Fund have expected profit rates ranging from
7.05% to 20.00% per annum (2023: 6.74% to 20.25% per annum).

5.2 This includes a balance maintained with Meezan Bank Limited (a related party).

Note 2024 2023
6 INVESTMENTS (Rupees in '000)
At fair value through profit or loss
Sukuk certificates 6.1 40,605,878 4,150,000
Term deposit receipts - having original maturity of 3 months or less 6.2 12,300,000 9,600,000
Certificate of musharakah 6.4 24,000,000 15,000,000
Bai Muaijjal receivable 6.3 2,170,720

79,076,598 28,750,000

6.1 Sukuk certificates ‘

Government securities 6.1.1 29,047,878 -
Corporate sukuk certificates 6.1.2 11,558,000 4,150,000
40,605,878 4,150,000

6.1.1 Government securities

Sold! Unielied pe{::;;g;m
Purchased Canying | Marketvalue | appreciation | .
] Profit payments Matuity A: azto‘lz';}y during the :df’e m;d A;Da;‘;;:e valueasal |as atJune 30,}(diminuton) as{ Net assets | Total market
Hame of the secury I pnnclPal Issue date date Profitate ! year i June 30,2024 204 atdune3, | ofthe | valueof
redemptions yeat 04 Fund | investments

{Number of cerfficates) {Rupees in ‘000) %
GoP ljarah Sukuk Certificates ~ Semi-annually Apit17,  April 17, Weighled average - 150,750 150,750 - - - - -
- XXX-VRR (note 6.1.1.1) {Atmatuity 2023 2024 6 months T-Bills
GoP ljarah Sukuk Certificates  Semi-annually May22, May22, Weighted average - 82,181 82,181 - - - - -
- XXXI - VRR (note 6.1.1.1) TAtmatuily 2023 2024 6 months T-Bills
GoP ljarah Sukuk Certificates ~ Semi-annvally August 07, Augusl 07, Weighted average - 203875 20,000 183,875 18,381,784 18,398,533 16,739 16.05%  23.21%
-XCVI-VRR {note 6.1.1.1)  /Atmaluity 2023 2024 6 months T-Bills
GoP ljarah Sukuk Cerificates ~ Semi-annually October  October Weighted average - 2,710 - 210 21,298 274,786 488 0.24% 0.34%
-XXXIX-VRR (note 6.1.1.1)  /Atmatuity 08,2023 09,2024 6 months T-Bills
GoP ljarah Sukuk Certificates -1 Atmatuity December December 19.52% - 1,000,000 - 1000000 4639641 4,629,000 (10,641)  4.04% 5.85%
- FRR (note 6.1.1.2) 11,2023 9,2024
GoP ljarah Sukuk Cerificates -1  Atmalunly ~ April 26,  April 25, 20.00% - 200,000 - 200000 863870 868,600 4730 0.76% 1.10%
-FRR (note 6.1.1.2) 2024 2025
GoP ljarah Sukuk Cerlificates -1 Atmatuity  May24, May23, 19.89% - 1,140,000 1,020 1,138,080 4850670 4,879,950 20290  4.26% 6.17%
-FRR (note 6.1.1.2) 2024 2025
Total as at June 30, 2024 29,007,274 29047878 40505 2538%  36.13%
Total as at June 30, 2023 - - -

6.1.1.1 The nominal value of these sukuk certificates is Rs. 100,000 each.

6.1.1.2 The nominal value of these sukuk certificates is Rs. 5,000 each.

ANNUAL REPORT JUNE-2024 67



6.1.2 Corporate sukuk certificates

Meezan

Rozana Amdani
Fund

Unresliced Percentage in
Sold/ . . nrealis relation to
Matur Asat July :ﬂ::asu?: redeemed As at June 2:3?3{:’:;‘;9 ::"a[rj;:aelgg ' appreciation

Name of the security atunty Profit rate 1,203 8 durngthe} 30,2024 ' *[as at June 30,{ net assets Total market

date year 2024 2024 value of
yoar 024 |efthe Fund| .
investments
{Number of certificates) {Rupees in'000) %

Lucky Eleclric Limited - PPSTS-7 August 15, 6 months KIBOR plus 700 - 700 - - - - - -
(A-1+, PACRA) 2023 base rate of 1.50%
Lucky Eleclric Limited - PPSTS-8 September 6 months KIBORplus 750 - 750 - - - - -
(A-1+, PACRA) 29,2023  base rate of 0:55%
China Power Hub Generation Company ~ September 6 months KIBOR plus 1,050 - 1,050 - - - - - -
(Pvi) Limited - PPSTS (A-1+, PACRA) 20,2023  base rate of0.70%
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited- ~ October 6 months KIBOR plus 1,050 - 1,050 - - - - -
PPSTS-9 (A-1+, PACRA) 12,2023  baserate of 0.30%
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited-  December 6 months KIBOR plus 600 - 600 - - - - - -
PPSTS-11 (A-1+, PACRA) 13,2024  base rate of 0.50%
K- Electric Limited - PPSTS-18 February 9, 6 months KIBOR plus - 300 300 - - - - -
(A-1+, PACRA) 2024 base rate of 0.30%
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited-  February 6 months KIBOR plus - 930 930 - - - - -
PPSTS-12 {A-1+, PACRA) 16,2024  base rate of 0.50%
K- Electric Limited - PPSTS-20 March22, 6 months KIBOR plus - 750 750 - - - - - -
(A-1+,VIS) 2024  baserate of 0.55%
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited-  March 27, 3 months KIBOR plus - 750 750 - - - - - -
PPSTS-13 {A-1+, PACRA) 2024 base rate of 0.50%
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited -  April 11, 3 months KIBOR plus - 1,050 1,050 - - - -
PPSTS-14 (A-1+, PACRA) 2024 base rate of 0.45% -
K- Electric Limited - PPSTS-21 April 24, 6 months KIBOR plus - 750 750 - - - -
(A-1+, VIS} 2024 base rate of 0.50% - -
The Hub Power Company Limited- STS ~ May8, 6 months KIBOR plus - 900 900 - - - -
(A-1+, PACRA) 2024 base rate of 0.25% - -
JDW Sugar Mills Limited - STS June 14, 6 months KIBOR plus 1,950 1,950 - - - -
(A1, VIS) 2024 base rate of 0.90% -
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - June 28, 6 months KIBOR plus - 614 614 - - - -
PPSTS-15 (A-1+, PACRA) 2024 base rate of 0.30% -
Airlink Communication Limited September 6 months KIBOR plus - 450 - 450 450,000 450,000 -
(At, PACRA} 18,2024  base rate of 1.75% 0.39% 0.57%
K- Electric Limited - STS-XXIt July 10, 6 months KIBOR plus - 750 - 750 750,000 750,000 -
(A-1+, PACRA) 2024 base rate of 0.15% 0.65% 0.95%
Pakistan Telecommunication Company ~ July 18, 6 months KIBOR plus - 1,458 - 1458 1,458,000 1,458,000 -
Limited - STS-Il {A-1+, VIS}) 2024 bage rate of 0.15% 1.21% 1.84%
Ismail Industries Limited Sukuk August 13, 6 months KIBOR plus - 600 - 600 600,000 600,000 -
(A+, PACRA) 2024 base rate of 0.50% 0.52% 0.76%
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited -  August 15, 6 months KIBOR plus - 1,000 - 1,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
PPSTS-16 (A-1+, PACRA) 2024 base rate of 0.15% 0.87% 1.26%
JDW Sugar Mills Limited Sukuk August 15, 6 months KIBOR plus - 750 - 750 750,000 750,000 -
(A1, VIS) 2024 base rate of 0.80% 0.65% 0.95%
0BS Pharma Private Limited Sukuk August 29, 6 menths KIBOR plus - 100 - 100 100,000 100,000 -
{A-1,VIS) 2024 base rate of 1.40% 0.09% 0.13%
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Soldf . Unrealised relation to
value | Marketvalue .
Matui AsatJuly Z::Ic:as;: redeemed {As at June} Cair;ﬂ?ne 2 asqat.el:me 20 appreciation -
Name ofthe securty Ay Proftrste | H2028 |9 |duingthe| 30,2024 ' b asatJune 30,{ yegaseets | 1O mrket
date year 2024 2024 valueof
year 2% foftheFund] .
investments
{Number of certificates) ——— (Rupses in '000} %
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited-  October 6 months KIBOR plus - 1,060 - 1,050 1,050,000 1,050,000 -
PPSTS-18 (A-1+, PACRA) 15,2024  base rate of 0.25% 0.92% 1.33%
Thar Energy Limited Sukuk (AA-, PACRA) October 6 months KIBOR plus - 750 - 750 750,000 750,000 B
18,2024  baserate of 0.60% 0.65% 0.95%
Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited ~ October 6 months KIBOR plus - 1,500 - 1,500 1,500,000 1,500,000 -
Sukuk (A1, PACRA} 24,2024  base rate of 0.25% 1.31% 1.90%
The Hub Power Company Limited Sukuk  Novemebr 6 months KIBOR plus - 750 - 750 750,000 750,000 -
(A-1+, PACRA) 01,2024  base rate of 0.25% 0.65% 0.95%
K- Electric Limited - STS-XXVI (A-1+, December 6 months KIBOR plus - 750 - 750 750,000 750,000 -
VIS) 04,2024  base rate of 0.15% 0.65% 0.95%
Pakistan Telecommunication Company ~ December 6 months KIBOR plus - 750 - 750 750,000 750,000 - 0.65%
Limited - STS IV (A-1+, VIS} 12,2024  baserate of 0.15% 0.95%
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited- December 6 months KIBOR plus - 900 - 900 900,000 900,000 -
PPSTS-19 (A-1+, PACRA) 27,2024 base rate of 0.25% 0.79% 1.14%
Total as at June 30, 2024 11,568,000 11,558,000 - 10.06% 14.63%
Total as at June 30, 2023 4,150,000 4,150,000 -
6.1.1.2 The nominal value of these sukuk certificates is Rs 1,000,000 each.
6.1.1.3 The profit payments and principal redemptions of these sukuk certificates are receivable at maturity.
6.2 Term deposit receipts
Unrealised Percentage in
: st relation fo
Profit As at duly 1, Placed during d}:ra;:;::e vglau?g[s]il ah:a: m; (;m::uaot:;l:s Total market
. , ‘otal marke
Name of the Bank Maturydate | 0| M2} theyear | o Nuneso, 2008 2024 | atdumedn, | Netassels| T
2024 ofthe Fund investments
{Rupees in '000) %o
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) July 10,2023 18.57% 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 - - -
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) July 6, 2023 20.50% 2,700,000 - 2,700,000 - -
Bank Alfalah Limited {AA+, PACRA) July 6, 2023 20.50% 300,000 - 300,000
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) July 6, 2023 20.50% 600,000 600,000 - -
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) October §, 2023 21.05% 3,300,000 3,300,000 - -
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) Qctober 5, 2023 21.00% 6,000,000 6,000,000 - .
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) January 5, 2024 21.10% 9,200,000 9,200,000 - -
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) January 24, 2024 21.30% - 9,500,000 9,500,000 - -
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) March 11, 2024 21.30% - 8,700,000 8,700,000 -
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) June 13, 2024 21.22% - 10,800,000 10,800,000 -
Bank Alfalah Limited (AA+, PACRA) August23,2024  21.25% 1,400,000 1,400,000  1,400.000 1.22% 1.77%
Bank Alfalah Limiled (AA+, PACRA) Seplember 13,2024  20.50% 10,900,000 10,900,000  10,900.000 9.51% 13.78%
Total as at June 30, 2024 9,600,000 59,800,000 57,100,000 12,300,000 12,300,000 - 10.73% 15.55%
Total as at June 30, 2023 9,600,000 9,600,000 -
6.2.1 The profit payments and principal redemptions of these term deposits are receivable at maturity.
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6.3  Bai Muajjal receivable Fure prtt
Camying Asa Percentage
Total Total Accrued percentage| of total
R value as at
Maturity Profit | transaction | deferred | profitfor June 30 ofnet |marketvalue
Name of the counterparty date rate price income the year ' | assetsof of
2024 :
the Fund | investments
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ {Rupees in '000)ceseeemsessemsnmensenerccead %
Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited (AA+, VIS) July 11, 2024 21.12% 1,584,050 54,078 43,996 1,628,045 1.42% 2.06%
Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited (AA+, VIS) July 11,2024 21.12% 528,307 17,425 14,368 542,675 0.47% 0.69%
Total as at June 30, 2024 2,112,356 71,504 58,363 2170,720 1.89% 2.75%
Total as at June 30, 2023 15,892,243 582,502 582,502 -
6.4 Certificate of Musharakah
caminavatel Maretvai Unrealised | Percentage in relation to
. . [Carrying value| Market value P
Name of the bank Maturity date Profit rate Asatduly, | Placed dynng Hatured qunng asrzlJl?ne 30, ] as at June 30, appreciaton Net assels Totad meriet
2023 theperdod | the period 2024 04 as at June ofthe Fnd vaueo
30,2024 investments
(Rupeesin000) Yo
United Bank Limited July 7, 2023 2025% 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited July 14, 2023 20.20% 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited July 17, 2023 20.20% 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited Augusi 21,2023  2025% 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited July 14, 2023 20.60% - 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited July 19, 2023 20.60% - 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited July 14, 2023 20.60% - 650,000 650,000 - - - - .
Meezan Bank Limited July 19, 2023 20.60% - 650,000 650,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited July 14, 2023 20.60% - 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited July 19, 2023 20.60% - 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited July 21, 2023 20.70% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited July 20, 2023 21.00% - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited August 15,2023  21.00% 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited August 15,2023  21.10% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited August2,2023  21.00% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited August 1, 2023 21.00% 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited July 27, 2023 21.10% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited July 31,2023 21.25% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited August 16, 2023 21.00% 5200000 5,200,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited August 11, 2023 21.10% - 9,000,000 9,000,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited September 1,2023  21.00% - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited August 31,2023 21.25% - 9,500,000 9,500,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited September 15,2023  21.00% - 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited August 31,2023 21.20% - 5,200,000 5,200,000 - - - -
United Bank Limited August 31,2023  21.15% - 1,300,000 1,300,000 - - - -
United Bank Limited August 31,2023  21.20% - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited September7,2023  21.25% 9,400,000 9,400,000 - - - -
United Bank Limited September8, 2023 21.25% 6,000,000 6,000,000 - - - -
Askari Bank Limited September 15,2023  21.00% - 5085000 5,085,000 - - - -
United Bank Limited September 11,2023  21.05% 3,300,000 3,300,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited Seplember 18,2023  21.05% 5,800,000 5,800,000 - - - . -
United Bank Limited September 18,2023  21.05% - 3,100,000 3,100,000 - - - -
United Bank Limited September 28,2023  21.05% - 9,200,000 9,200,000 - - -
Askari Bank Limited October 16,2023  21.00% 7,161,000 7,161,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited October 12,2023  21.05% 7,500,000 7,500,000 - - -
United Bank Limited October 31,2023  21.00% 1,800,000 1,800,000 - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited November1,2023  21.25% 2,500,000 2,500,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited October 31,2023  21.10% 7,300,000 7,300,000 - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited October 19,2023  21.25% - 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - -
Askari Bank Limited November 16,2023  21.00% - 7,161,000 7,161,000 - - - -
United Bank Limited November 30, 2023  21.00% - 8,700,000 8,700,000 - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited November 17,2023  21.00% - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - -
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Percentage in relation to

. . |Camrying valuel Market value Unrea!is?d
Name of the bank Maturtydate | Proftrate | ASZHSU Y, | Placedduring |Maturedduring oy oo Fas atJune 30, FPPIECECONE o s | 10 market
2023 the period the period 2024 04 as at June of e Fund value of
30,2024 investments
(Rupees in ‘000) s
United Bank Limited November 30, 2023  21.00% - 650,000 650,000 - - - -
Askari Bank Limited December 18,2023  21.00% - 7,288,000 7,288,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited November 24, 2023 21.00% - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited November 27,2023  21.10% - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited December1,2023  21.00% - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited November 28,2023  21.00% - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited December7,2023  21.00% - 9,300,000 9,300,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited December 8,2023  21.15% - 2,500,000 2,500,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited December 15,2023  21.05% - 6,000,000 6,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited December 14,2023  21.10% - 9,300,000 9,300,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited December 11,2023  20.60% - 3,500,000 3,500,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited December 29,2023  21.25% - 9,500,000 9,500,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited January 2, 2024 21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited February 16,2024  21.10% - 8,000,000 8,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited Janvary 12,2024 20.70% - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited January 12,2024 21.10% - 6,500,000 6,500,000 - - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Janvary 15,2024  21.15% - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited January 16,2024 21.05% - 9,400,000 9,400,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited January 22,2024 20.75% - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - .
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 22,2024 21.15% - 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited January 23,2024 20.75% - 4,700,000 4,700,000 - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 25,2024 20.90% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 25,2024  20.90% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 25,2024  20.90% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Habiby Metropolitan Bank Limited January 29,2024  21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 29,2024  21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 30,2024  21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 30,2024 21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 30,2024  21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 30,2024  21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Hahib Metropolitan Bank Limited January 30,2024  21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Habib Mefropolitan Bank Limited January 30,2024 21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited January 31,2024 20.95% - 9,300,000 9,300,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited January 31,2024 21.00% - 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited February2,2024  21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited February 2,2024  20.75% - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited February 9, 2024 21.10% - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited February 16,2024  20.75% - 9,000,000 9,000,000 - - - -
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited February 16,2024  21.25% - 4,500,000 4,500,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited February 16,2024  20.85% - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited February 21,2024  20.70% - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited February 21,2024  20.70% - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited February 23,2024  20.90% - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited February 29,2024  21.00% - 6,000,000 6,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited February 29,2024  21.15% - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - -
Faysal Bank Limited March 1, 2024 20.90% - 5500000 5,500,000 - - - - -
Habib Bank Limited March 1, 2024 21.05% - 4,500,000 4,500,000 - - - -
Askari Bank Limited March 8, 2024 21.00% - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited March 8, 2024 21.02% - 4,800,000 4,800,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited March 11,2024  20.95% 8,300,000 8,300,000 - - - -
United Bank Limited March 14,2024  20.50% 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Habib Bank Limited March 15,2024  21.00% - 4,600,000 4,600,000 - -
United Bank Limited March 15,2024  21.00% - 9,000,000 9,000,000 - - - -
Habib Bank Limited March 15,2024  21.00% - 6,000,000 6,000,000 - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited March 15, 2024 20.80% . 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited March 15, 2024 20.80% - 900,000 900,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited March 15, 2024 20.80% - 5000000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited March 15,2024  21.00% 5,600,000 5,600,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited March 15,2024  20.80% - 5,200,000 5,200,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited March 22, 2024 21.00% - 11,100,000 11,100,000 - - -

ANNUAL REPORT JUNE-2024 71



Meezan

Rozana Amdani
Fund

pllre. Pro‘“
o valel kel Unrealiseg | Percentage in refation to
. . |Camying value Market value -
Name of the bank Waturity date Profit rate Asatduly, | Placed dfmng Halured ({unng as at June 30, | as at June 30, appreciaton Netassels Total market
2023 the period the period 2024 2024 asatJune ofthe Furd value of
30,2024 investments
{Rupees in"000) %
United Bank Limited March 28,2024  20.90% - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited March 28, 2024 20.85% - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited March 28, 2024 21.10% - 10,500,000 10,500,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited April 5, 2024 21.10% - 7,000,000 7,000,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited April 15, 2024 20.95% - 8,300,000 8,300,000 - - - -
Askari Bank Limited April 15, 2024 20.95% - 2,500,000 2,500,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited April 15, 2024 21.40% 10,500,000 10,500,000 - - - - -
Allied Bank Limited Aprit 18, 2024 21.00% 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited April 19, 2024 20.80% 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited April 26, 2024 20.80% 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited ’ April 26, 2024 21.10% 10,500,000 10,500,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited April 29, 2024 20.80% 4,500,000 4,500,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited April 29, 2024 20.80% 4,500,000 4,500,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited April 30, 2024 20.60% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited April 30, 2024 20.60% 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited April 30, 2024 20.75% 2,300,000 2,300,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited May 3, 2024 21.10% 11,200,000 11,200,000 - - - - -
Allied Bank Limited May 7, 2024 21.00% 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Allied Bank Limited May 10, 2024 21.00% 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 10, 2024 20.75% 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 10, 2024 20.75% 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 10, 2024 20.75% 3,300,000 3,300,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited May 15, 2024 20.95% 10,500,000 10,500,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 17, 2024 20.80% 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 17, 2024 20.80% 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 17, 2024 20.80% 3,500,000 3,500,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited May 17, 2024 21.10% 11,500,000 11,500,000 - - - - -
Allied Bank Limited May 23, 2024 21.00% 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited May 24, 2024 21.00% 7,500,000 7,500,000 - - - - -
Bank Al Habib Limited May 24, 2024 21.00% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 24, 2024 20.85% 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 24, 2024 20.85% 3,000000 3,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 24, 2024 20.85% 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited May 24, 2024 20.85% 3100000 3,100,000 - - - - -
United Bank Limited May 24, 2024 21.00% 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited May 31, 2024 21.15% 12,100,000 12,100,000 - - - -
Bank Al Habib Limited June 7, 2024 21.10% 7,000,000 7,000,000 - - - - -
Bank Al Habib Limited June 7, 2024 21.10% 1,100,000 1,100,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited June 7, 2024 20.85% 4,300,000 4,300,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited June 7, 2024 20.85% 2,500,000 2,500,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited Jung 7, 2024 20.85% 2,500,000 2,500,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited June 7, 2024 20.85% 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited June 11, 2024 20.25% 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited June 11, 2024 20.25% 2,200000 2,200,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited June 11, 2024 20.25% 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited June 11, 2024 20.25% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Faysa! Bank Limited June 14, 2024 21.15% 7,000,000 7,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited June 14, 2024 21.15% 5400000 5,400,000 - - - - -
Bank Al Habib Limited June 21, 2024 19.60% 6,400,000 6,400,000 - - - - -
Meezan Bank Limited June 21, 2024 19.10% 5,000,000  5,000.000 - - - - -
Meezan Bark Limited June 25, 2024 18.20% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - - - -
tMeezan Bank Limited June 25, 2024 19.20% 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - o - -
Meezan Bank Limited June 25, 2024 19.20% 5000000 5,000,000 - - - - -
Faysal Bank Limited June 28, 2024 19.60% 12,400,000 12,400,000 - - - - -
Askari Bank Limited July 2, 2024 20.95% 10,500,000 - 10,500,000 10,500,000 - 9.16%  13.28%
United Bank Limited July 5, 2024 19.94% 13,500,000 - 13,500,000 13,500,000 - 11.78% 17.07%
Total as at June 30, 2024 15,000,000 723,545,000 714,545,000 24,000,000 24,000,000 - 20.94% 30.35%
Total as at June 30, 2023 15,000,000 15,000,000 -

6.4.1 The profit payments and principal redemptions of these certificates of musharakah are receivable at maturity.
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6.5 Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of Note 2024 2023
investments classified as 'financial assets atfar =~~~ cemeend] Rupees in '000"'-------
value through profit or loss’
Market value of investments 6.1.1 29,047,878 -
Less: Carrying value of investments 6.1.1 (29,007,274) -
40,604 -
7 PROFIT RECEIVABLE
Profit receivable on:
Bank balances 539,259 719,692
Term deposit receipts 467,901 456,371
Sukuk certificates 2,201,561 221,852
3,208,721 1,397,915
8 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limite 100 100
Prepayments ) 220 214
ATM deposit with Meezan Bank Limited 1,000 1,000
Advance against IBFT Redemptions 37,000 1,000
38,320 2,314
9 PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOTATION COSTS
At the beginning of the year 100 300
Less: amortisation during the year (100) (200)
At the end of the year 9.1 - 100
9.1 Preliminary expenses and flotation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of operations of
the Fund. These costs are amortised over a period of five years in accordance with the requirements set out in the
Trust Deed of the Fund and the NBFC Regulations.
10 PAYABLE TO AL MEEZAN INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT Note 2024 2023
LIMITED - MANAGEMENT COMPANY (Rupees in '000)
Remuneration payable 10.1 11,665 8,164
Sindh sales tax payable on remuneration of the
Management Company 10.2 1,517 1,060
Selling and marketing expenses payable 10.3 60,422 105,600
73,604 114,814

10.1  As per regulation 81 of the NBFC Regulations, the management Company is entitled to a remuneration equal to an
amount not exceeding the maximum rate of management fee as disclosed in the Offering Document subject to the
total expense ratio limit.

Keeping in view the maximum allowable threshold, the Management Company has charged its remuneration at the
foliowing rates during the year:

2024
Period Rate applicable
From July 01, 2023 to July 31, 2023 0.48% of the average annual net assets
From August 01, 2023 to August 31, 2023 0.66% of the average annual net assets
From September 01, 2023 to October 31, 2023 0.69% of the average annual net assets
From November 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 0.61% of the average annual net assets
From April 01, 2024 to June 30, 2024 0.70% of the average annual net assets
2023
Period Rate applicable
From July 01, 2022 to Ocfober 17, 2022 0.33% of the average annual net assets
From October 18, 2022 to November 30, 2022 0.35% of the average annual net assets
From December 01, 2022 to June 30, 2023 0.40% of the average annual net assets

The remuneration is payable to the Management Company monthly in arrears.

10.2  Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act,
2011 has been charged at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2023: 13%).
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10.3 In accordance with Circular 11 dated July 5, 2018 issued by SECP, with respect to charging selling and marketing
expenses, the Management Company, based on its own discretion has charged selling and marketing expenses at
the following rates during the year ended June 30, 2024, subject to total expense charged being lower than actual
expense incurred.

2024
Period Rates
From July 01, 2023 to July 31, 2023 0.48% of the average annual net assets
From August 01, 2023 to August 31, 2023 0.30% of the average annual net assets
From September 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 0.27% of the average annual net assets
From April 01, 2024 to June 30, 2024 0.18% of the average annual net assets
2023
Period Rates
From July 01, 2022 to November 30, 2022 0.12% of the average annual net assets
From December 01, 2022 to April 03, 2023 0.21% of the average annual net assets
From April 04, 2023 to June 30, 2023 0.46% of the average annual net assets

10.4 During the year, SECP carried out routine offsite review and onsite inspection of the Management Company and
inspected, among other matters, the mechanism of chargeability of selling and marketing expenses to the funds
under its management. As a result of this inspection, SECP recommended changes in the mechanism of
chargeability of selling and marketing expenses to the fund. As agreed with SECP, the Management Company has
refunded an aggregate amount of Rs. 40.57 million to the identified unit holders through the issuance of additional
units of the Fund subsequent to the year end. There is no impact of this refund on Net Assets Value of the Fund as
at June 30, 2024.

11 PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF Note 2024 2023
PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE {Rupees in '000)
Remuneration of the Trustee 111 5,729 4,361
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration of the Trustee 11.2 745 567
6,474 4,928

11.4 The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed at the rate of 0.055% (June 30, 2023: 0.055%) per annum of the average annual net assets of the Fund.

14.2 Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 has been
charged at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2023: 13%).

12 PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE Note 2024 2023
CONMMISSION OF PAKISTAN (SECP) (Rupees in '000)
Fee Payable 12.1 7,908 16,698

12.4  In accordance with the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) is required to pay non-refundable
fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Accordingly, the Fund has charged SECP fee
at the rate of 0.075% (2023: 0.02%) per annum of the daily net assets during the period.

Further, the Fund is required to pay SECP fee within fifteen days of the close of every calendar month. Previously,
the Fund was required to pay SECP fee within three months of the close of accounting year.

Note 2024 2023
13 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Rupees in '000)

Auditors' remuneration payable 401 323
Brokerage payable 567 250
Shariah advisor fee payable 1,059 522
Withholding tax payable on dividends 292,649 238,268
CDS charges payable 2,868 2,878
Zakat payable 522 152
Other payable 59 8
IBFT charges payable 709 -

298,834 242 401

14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.
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2024 2023
(Rupees in "000)
15 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Annual-audit fee 350 348
Half yearly review fee 181 171
Out of pocket expenses and Sindh Sales Tax 102 27

633 546

16 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Total Expense Ratio (TER) of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 is 1.13% (2023: 0.76%) which includes 0.17%
(2023: 0.08%) representing government levies on the Fund such as sales taxes, fee to the SECP etc. This ratio is
within the maximum limit of 2% prescribed under the NBFC Regulations for a collective investment scheme
categorised as a 'Money Market scheme'.

17 TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause (99) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders as cash dividend.
Furthermore, as per Regulation 63 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008,
the Fund is required to distribute not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year derived from sources other
than capital gains as reduced by such expenses as are chargeable thereon to the unit holders. Since the
Management Company has distributed the required minimum percentage of income earned by the Fund for the year
ended June 30, 2024 to the unit holders in the manner as explained above, no provision for taxation has been made
in these financial statements during the year.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

18 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

18.1  Connected persons include Al Meezan Investment Management Limited being the Management Company, Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) being the Trustee, Meezan Bank Limited being the holding company
of the Management Company, Directors and Executives of the Management Company, other Collective investment
Schemes managed by the Management Company, Pakistan Kuwait Investment Company (Private) Limited being the
associated company of the Management Company, Al Meezan Investment Management Limited Employees’ Gratuity
Fund and unitholders holding 10 percent or more of the Fund's net assets.

18.2  Transactions with connected persons essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee on account of managing
the affairs of the Fund, sales load, other charges and distribution payments to connected persons. The transactions
with connected persons are also in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and at terms determined in
accordance with market rates. The management considers that the transactions between the related parties /
connected persons are executed in accordance with the parameters defined in the Offering document, trust deed and
NBFC regulations which are publicly available documents and hence, the transactions are considered to be on an
arm’s length basis.

18.3 Remuneration to the Management Company of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC

18.4 Remuneration to the Trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

18.5  Selling and marketing expenses are charged to the Fund by the Management Company subject to the maximum
prescribed

18.6  Detail of transactions with connected persons and balances with them are as follows:
Balances 2024 2023

(Rupees in '000)
Al Meezan Investment Management Limited - Management Company

Remuneration payable to the Management Company 11,665 8,154
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration of the Management Company 1,617 1,060
Selling and marketing expense payable 60,422 105,600
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Balances 2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration payable to the Trustee 5,729 4,361
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 745 567
Security deposit 100 100
CDS charges payable 2,868 2,878

Meezan Bank Limited

Balance with bank 912,723 743,590
Profit receivable on saving account 6,600 2,808
Shariah advisor fee payable 1,059 522
ATM deposit 1,000 1,000
Advance against IBFT redemptions T 37,000 1,000

MFPF Aggressive Allocation Plan
Investment of units : Nil (June 30, 2023: 320,358 units) - 16,018

MFPF Moderate Allocation Plan
Investment of units : Nil (June 30, 2023: 618,835 units) - 30,942

MFPF Conservative Allocation Plan
Investment of units : Nil (June 30, 2023: 887,813 units) - 44,391

Meezan Strategic Asset Allocation Fund - MCPP - Iii
Investment of units : Nil (June 30, 2023: 2,433,027 units) - 121,651

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund -ll - MCPP - IV
Investment of units : Nil (June 30, 2023: 3,570,255 units) - 178,513

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund-ll - MCPP -V
Investment of units : Nil (June 30, 2023: 642,972 units) - 32,149

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund ii- MCPP - VI
Investment of units : Nil (June 30, 2023: 894,257 units) - 44 173

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund {lI- MCPP - Vi
Investment of units : Nil (June 30, 2023: 500,984 units) - 25,049

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund IlI- MCPP - IX
Investment of units : Nil (June 30, 2023: 3,501,288 units) - 175,064

Al Meezan Investment Management Limited - Employees' Gratuity Fund
Investment of 812,681 units (June 30, 2023: 668,284 units) 40,634 33,414

Directors and Executives of the Management Company
Investment of 733,275 units (2023: 1,222,770 units units) 36,664 61,139

Transactions during the year 2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)
Al Meezan Investment Management Limited - Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company 664,452 315,173
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 86,379 40,973
Selling and marketing expenses T 271,837 205,343
Units issued:; 62,700,793 units (2023: 11,611,661 units) 3,135,040 580,583
Units redeemed: 22,822,550 units (2023: 12,790,873 units) 1,141,127 639,544
Dividend paid 56,670 12,098
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Transactions during the year 2024 2023
(Rupees in '000)
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration of the Trusiee 56,933 45,923
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 7,401 5,970
Units issued: nil units (2023: 4,185,805 units) - 209,280
Units redeemed: nil units (2023: 4,185,805 units) - 209,290
Dividend paid - 10,930
CDS charges - 1,504

Meezan Bank Limited

Profit on savings account 44,659 23,960
Cerificate of musharika placed 146,100,000 89,850,000
Cerificate of musharika matured 146,100,000 ~ 89,850,000
Profit on term deposit receipts ~ 627,562 951,208
Shariah advisory fee expense 1,075 1,065

National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
NCCPL Charges 140 -

MFPF Aggressive Allocation Plan

Units issued: 53,142 units (2023 : 320,358 units) 2,657 16,018
Units redeemed: 373,500 units (March 31, 2023: Nil units) 18,675 -
Dividend paid 657 -

MFPF Moderate Allocation Plan

Units issued: 53,486 units (2023 : 618,835 units) 2,674 30,942
Units redeemed: 672,321 units (March 31, 2023: Nil units) 33,616 -
Dividend paid 1,274 -

MFPF Conservative Allocation Plan

Units issued: 36,968 units (2023 : 887,813 units) 1,848 44,391
Units redeemed: 924,781 units (March 31, 2023: Nil) 46,239 -
Dividend paid 1,848 -

Meezan Strategic Asset Allocation Fund - MCPP - il

Units issued: 104,881 units (2023: 2,843,601 units) 5,244 142,180
Units redeemed: 2,537,908 units (2023: 3,914,436 units) 126,895 195,722
Dividend paid 5,244 20,529

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund Il - MCPP - IV

Units issued: 151,992 units (2023: 5,347,995 units) 7,600 267,400
Units redeemed: 3,722,247 units (2023: 9,765,600 units) 186,112 488,280
Dividend paid 7,600 43,887

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund Il - MCPP -V

Units issued: 27,294 units (2023: 772,930 units) 1,365 38,646
Units redeemed: 670,266 units (2023: 1,259,929 units) 33,513 62,996
Dividend paid 1,365 6,078

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund Il - MCPP - VI

Units issued: 26,017 units (2023: 1,136,331 units) 1,301 56,817
Units redeemed: 920,274 units (2023: 1,573,986 units) 46,014 78,699
Dividend paid 1,301 7,604
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Transactions during the year 2624 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund il - MCPP - VIi

Units issued: 20,844 units (2023: 636,792 units) 1,042 31,840
Units redeemed: 521,828 units (2023: 916,927 units) 26,091 45,846
Dividend paid 1,042 4,790

Meezan Strategic Allocation Fund lll - MCPP - IX

Units issued: 148,741 units (2023: 4,467,761 units) 7,437 223,388
Units redeemed: 3,650,029 units (2023: 7,648,511 units) 182,501 382,426
Dividend paid 7,437 35,584

Al Meezan Investment Management Limited - Employees’ Gratuity Fund

Units issued: 144,396 units (2023: 166,776 units) 7,220 8,339
Dividend paid 7,220 4,339

Directors and Executives of the Management Company

Units issued: 809,534 units (2023: 14,839,633 units) 40,477 741,982
Units redeemed: 538,361 units (2023: 21,044,859 units) 26,918 1,052,243
Dividend paid 3,200 17,936
Note 2024 2023
19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rupees in '000)
Balances with banks 5 38,099,169 65,893,238
Certificate of musharka 6.4 24,000,000 15,000,000
Term deposit receipts (with original maturity of three months or less) 6.2 12,300,000 9,600,000
Bai Muajjal receivable 6.3 2,170,720 -

76,569,889 90,493,238

20 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2024
. At fair value
At amortised through profit Total
cost
orloss

------------------- -- (Rupees in '000) -eseessecrmmncnnencracaac.
Financial assets

Balances with banks 38,099,169 - 38,099,169
Investments - 79,076,598 79,076,598
Receivable against conversion of units 19,985 - 19,985
Profit receivable 3,208,721 - 3,208,721
Advances and deposits 38,100 - 38,100

41,365,975 79,076,598 120,442,573

Financial liabilities
Payable to Al Meezan Investment Management Limited -

Management Company 73,604 - 73,604

Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 6,474 - 6,474
Payable against conversion and redemption of units 5,337,964 - 5,337,964
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 5,663 - 5,663
Dividend Payable 111,627 111,627
5,535,332 - 5,535,332
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2023
. At fair value
Atamortised through profit Tota!
cost
orloss
----------------- (Rupees in "000) ~e-veeemcmoeamsacancnans

Financial assets
Balances with banks 65,893,238 - 65,893,238
Investments - 28,750,000 28,750,000
Receivable against conversion of units 865,887 - 865,887
Profit receivabie 1,397,915 - 1,397,915
Advances and deposits 2,100 2,100

68,159,140 28,750,000 96,909,140

Financial liabilities
Payable to Al Meezan Investment Management Limited -

Management Company 114,814 - 114,814

Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 4,928 - 4,928
Payable against conversion and redemption of units 375,827 - 375,827
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,981 - 3,981
Dividend Payable 149,178 - 149,178
648,728 - 648,728

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The risk management policy of the Fund aims to maximise the return attributable to the unit holders and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Fund’s financial performance.

Risks of the Fund are being managed by the Fund manager in accordance with the approved policies of the
Investment Committee which provides broad guidelines for management of risk pertaining to market risks (including
price risk, interest rate risk and currency risk) credit risk and liquidity risk. Further, the overall exposure of the Fund
complies with the NBFC Regulations and the directives issued by the SECP.

Risks managed and measured by the Fund are explained below:
21.1  Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages the market risk through diversification of the investment portfolio and by
following the internal guidelines established by the Investment Committee.

Market risk comprises of three types of risks: yield/profit rate risk, currency risk and price risk.
(i) Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a resuit
of changes in market profit rates. As of June 30, 2024, the Fund is exposed to such risk on its balances held
with banks and investments in corporate sukuks, government securities, term deposit receipts, certificate of
musharakah and Bai Muajjal. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a
regular basis to ensure that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Fund's profit rate risk arises from the balances in saving accounts, investment in corporate sukuks,
government securities. At June 30, 2024, if there had been increase / decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, net assets of the Fund for the year then ended would have been
higher / lower by Rs. 682.27 million (2023: Rs. 698.43 million).

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and profit rates are expected to change over time. Accordingly,
the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2024 is not necessarily indicative of the impact on the Fund's net
assets of future movements in profit rates.

Profit rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on the settiement date.
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The Fund's profit rate sensitivity related to financial assets and financial liabilities as at June 30, 2024 can be

determined as follows:

2024
Exposed to profit rate risk
Effective More than Not exposed
profit rate Uptothree | three months | More than one | to profit rate Total
(%) months | and up to one year risk
year
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Balances with banks 7.05% to 20.00%| 37,999,127 - - 100,042 | 38,099,169
Investments 19.52% to 23.14% 37,977,253 §} 41,099,346 - - 79,076,598
Receivable against conversion of units - - - 19,985 19,985
Profit receivable - - - 3,208,721 3,208,721
Advances and deposits - - - 38,100 38,100
75,976,380 41,099,346 - 3,366,848 120,442,573
Financial liabilities
Payable to Al Meezan Investment Management
Limited - Management Company - - - 73,604 73,604
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 6,474 6,474
Payable again§t conversion and redemption of units - - - 5,337,964 5,337,964
Dividend payable - - - 111,627 111,627
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 5,663 5,663
- - - 5,535,332 5,535,332
On-balance sheet gap (a) 75,976,380 41,099,346 - (2,168,484) 114,907,241
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - -
Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - - - -
Total profit rate sensitivity gap (a+b) 75,976,380 41,099,346 -
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 75,976,380 117,075,726 117,075,726
2023
Exposed to profit rate risk
Effective More than Not exposed
profit rate Uptothree | three months | More than one | to profit rate Total
(%) months | and up to one year risk
year
Rupees in "000
Financial assets
Balances with banks 6.74% to 20.25%| 65,693,195 - - 200,043 | 65,893,238
Investments 18.57% to 23.67% 27,100,000 1,650,000 - - 28,750,000
Receivable against conversion of units - - - 865,887 865,887
Profit receivable - - - 1,397,915 1,397,915
Advances and deposits - - - 2,100 2,100
92,793,195 1,650,000 - 2,465,945 96,909,140
Financial liabilities
Payable to Al Meezan Investment Management
Limited - Management Company - - - 114,814 114,814
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 4,928 4,928
Payable against conversion and redemption of units - - - 375,827 375,827
Dividend payable - - - 149,178 149,178
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 3,981 3,981
- - - 648,728 648,728
On-balance sheet gap (a) 92,793,195 1,650,000 - 1,817,217 96,260,412
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - - -
Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - - - -
Total profit rate sensitivity gap (a+b) 92,793,195 1,650,000 -
Cumulative profit rate sensitivity gap 02,793,195 94,443,195 94,443,195
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(ii} Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in foreign exchange rates. the Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign currencies
and hence is not exposed to such risk.

(iii) Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments traded in the market.

21.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligation in
full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to daily redemptions at the option of unit holders. the Fund's approach to managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under
both normal and stressed conditions. the Fund's policy is, therefore, to invest the majority of its assets in investments
that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

As per the NBFC Regulations, the Fund can borrow in the short-term to ensure settlement. The maximum limit of
which is fifteen percent of the net assets upto 90 days and would be secured by the assets of the Fund.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess of
ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for being
processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests
come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. The Fund did not withhold any redemption
requests during the year ended June 30, 2024.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant
maturity groupings is based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
dates. However, the assets and liabilities that are receivable / payable on demand including balances with banks
have been included in the maturity grouping of one month:
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2024
More than one| More than More than Financial
Within 1 monthand | threemonths | oneyear | Morethan | instruments Total
month uptothree | anduptoone | andupto | S5Syears | withno fixed
months year five years maturity
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Balances with banks 38,099,169 - - - - - 38,099,169
Investments - 37,977,253 | 41,099,346 - - - 79,076,598
Receivable against conversion of units 19,985 - - - - - 19,985
Profit accrued 1,007,160 | 2,201,561 - - - - 3,208,721
Advances and deposits - - - - - 38,100 38,100
39,126,314 40,178,814 41,099,346 - - 38,100 120,442,573
Financial liabilities
Payable to Al Meezan Investment Management
Limited - Management Company 73,604 - - - - - 73,604
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 6,474 - - - - - 6,474
Payable against conversion and redemption
of units 5,337,964 - - - - - 5,337,964
Dividend payable 111,627 - - - - - 111,627
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,203 1,460 - - - - 5,663
5,633,873 1,460 - - - - 5,535,332
Net financial assets 33,502,441 40,177,354 41,099,346 - - 38,100 114,907,241
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2023
More than | More than Financial
More than -
Within 1 one month three one year More |instruments
and upto | months and than § with no TFotal
month and upto
three upto one years fixed
five years .
months year maturity
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Balances with banks 65,893,238 - - - - - 65,893,238
Investments - 27,100,000 1,650,000 - - - 28,750,000
Receivable against conversion of units 865,887 - - - - - 865,887
Profit receivable 1,176,063 221,852 - - - - 1,397,915
Advances and deposits - - - - - 2,100 2,100
67,935,188 27,321,852 1,650,000 - - 2,100 96,908,140
Financial liabilities
Payable to Al Meezan investment Management .
Limited - Management Company 114,814 - - - - - 114,814
Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 4,928 - - - - - 4,928
Payable against conversion and redemption
of units 375,827 - - - - - 375,827
Dividend payable 149,178 - - - - - 149,178
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,136 845 - - - - 3,981
647,883 845 - - - - 648,728
Net financial assets 67,287,305 27,321,007 1,650,000 - - 2,100 96,260,412

21.3 Creditrisk

21.3.1 Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by failing to
discharge its obligation as it falls due. Credit risk arising on the debt instruments is mitigated by investing in rated
instruments or instruments issued by rated counterparties of credit ratings of at least investment grade by the
recognised rating agencies. The Fund receives a monthly rating update, against which investments are reviewed.

Credit risk arising on the debt instruments other than government securities is mitigated by investing in rated
instruments or instruments issued by rated counterparties of credit ratings of at least investment grade by the
recognised rating agencies. The Fund receives a monthly rating update, against which investments are reviewed.
The Fund, however, also invests in unrated instruments based on internal ratings assigned by the Fund manager
using an approach that is consistent with the approach used by the rating agencies. Credit risk arising on other
financial assets is monitored through a regular analysis of financial position of brokers and other parties. In
accordance with the risk management policy of the Fund, the investment manager monitors the credit position on a
daily basis which is reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Management Company on a quarterly basis.

The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk:

2024 2023
Balance as per Maximum Balance as per Maximum
statement of statement of
exposure to exposure to
assets and . assets and .
e credit risk - credit risk
liabilities liabilities
---------------- Rupees In '000 Rupees In '000«smsrseraraceese
Balances with banks 38,099,169 38,099,169 65,893,238 65,893,238
Investments 79,076,598 50,028,720 28,750,000 28,750,000
Receivable against conversion of units 19,985 19,985 865,887 865,887
Profit receivable 3,208,721 1,644,671 1,397,915 1,397,915
Deposits 38,100 38,100 2,100 2,100

120,442,573 89,830,645 96,909,140 96,908,140

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2024 is the carrying amount of
the financial assets.

21.3.2 Credit quality of financial assets
The Fund's significant credit risk arises mainly on account of its placements in banks and profit receivable thereon,

corporate sukuks, certificates of musharakah, bai muajjal, term deposit receipts and receivable against conversion of
units and against investments. The credit rating profile of balances with banks is as follows:
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% of financial assets

Rating 2024 2023
AAA 60.76% 58.30%
AA+ 0.27% 6.28%
AA 38.96% 35.42%
100.00% 100.00%

Ratings of outstanding investments have been disclosed in related notes to the financial statements. Since, the
assets of the Fund are held with credit worthy counterparties, therefore any significant credit risk is mitigated.

21.3.3 Concentration of credit risk
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic and industry factors similarly affect groups of counter
parties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's total credit exposure. As fransactions
are entered with credit worthy parties and are within regulatory limits therefore any significant concentration of credit
risk is mitigated.
All financial assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 are unsecured and are not impaired.

22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values

and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement
of assets and liabilities date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not to
be significantly different from the respective book values.

Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Fund to classify assets using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, the Fund held the following financial instruments measured at fair values:

2024
Level1 J[ Level2 [] Level3
--------------------- Rupees in '000 ------c--emccaumecn-i

Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss

Sukuk certificates* - 40,605,878 -
Term deposit receipts - having original maturity of 3 months or less * - 12,300,000 -
Bai Muajjal receivable ** - 2,170,720 -
Certificate of musharakah - 24,000,000
- 79,076,598 -
2023

Level1 [[ Level2 [] Level3
--------------------- Rupees in '000 --------m-mcmemvenens

Financial assets - at fair value through profit or loss

Sukuk certificates* - 4,150,000 -
Term deposit receipts - having original maturity of 3 months or less * - 9,600,000 -
Bai Muajjal receivable ** - - -
Certificate of musharakah 15,000,000

- 28,750,000 -
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* The carrying value of these securities approximate their fair value since these are short term in nature and are placed with counter
parties which have high credit ratings.

** The valuation of Bai Muajjal receivable have been carried out based on amortisation to their face values / sale price as per the
guidelines given in Circular 33 of 2012 since the residual maturity of these investments is less than six months and they are placed
with counterparties which have high credit ratings.

23 UNIT HOLDERS'® FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by redeemable units. These units are entitled to dividends and to payment of a
proportionate share based on the Fund's Net Asset Value per unit on the redemption date. The relevant movements
are shown on the 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'.

The Fund has no restriction on the subscription and redemption of units. As required under the NBFC Reguiations,
every open end scheme shall maintain fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs 100 million at ali times during the
life of the scheme. the Fund has historically maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size at

The Fund's objectives when managing unit holders' funds are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can continue to provide returns to the unit holders and to maintain a strong base of assets to meet
unexpected losses or opportunities.

In accordance with the risk management policies as stated in note 21, the Fund endeavours to invest the
subscriptions received in appropriate investment avenues while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions,
such liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments or short-term borrowings, where necessary.

24 UNIT HOLDING PATTERN OF THE FUND

2024 2023
Category Number of unit Investment Percentage of total} | Number of unit Investment Percentage of total
holders amount investments holders amount investments
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
Individuals 9,850 52,722,515 46.00 8,841 43,013,325 44.80
Associated Companies /

Directors 4 1,853,414 1.62 15 755,450 0.79
Insurance Companies 11 219,993 0.19 4 80,605 0.08
Retirement Funds 196 5,651,653 4.84 104 2,899,594 3.02
Public/Private Limited

Companies 501 50,518,776 44.08 221 31,431,779 32.74
Others 110 3,740,031 3.26 142 17,824,853 18.57

10,772 114,606,382 100.00 9,327 96,005,606 100.00

25 LIST OF TOP TEN BROKERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID

2024 2023

Percentage of Percentage of

Name of broker com:;iis;sion Name of broker commission paid

C&M Management (Pvt) Limited 32.99% Arif Habib Limited 48.00%
Summit Capital Market 14.56% Vector Capital (Pvt) Limited 27.00%
Alfalah Securities (Pvt) Limited 8.48% J8 Global Capital Limited 15.00%
Vector Capital (Pvt) Limited 7.96% Paramount Capital (Pvt) Limited 9.00%

Continental Exchange (Pvt) Limited 7.36% Alfalah Securities (Pvt) Limited 1.00%

JS Global Capital Limited 7.16% AKD Securities Limited -
BMA Capital Management Limited 6.68% BMA Capital Management Limited -
Invest One Markets Limited 6.63% C&M Management (Pvt) Limited -
Arif Habib Limited 6.11% Continental Exchange (Pvt) Limited -
Continental Securities Limited 1.44% Continental Securities Limited -
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26  DETAILS OF MEMBERS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE re.pee
26.1  Following are the details in respect of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund:
{ Name § Designation i Qualifications B! Overall experience
Mr. Muhammad Asad Acting Chief Executive Officer / CFA level Il / MBA Twenty Eight years
Chief Investment Officer
Mr. Ahmed Hassan Head of Equity CFA/MBA Seventeen years
Mr. Faizan Saleem Head of Fixed Income CFA level Il / MBA Seventeen years
Mr. Asif Imtiaz VP Investments CFA / MBA - Finance Sixteen years
Mr. Akhtar Munir Head of Risk Management CFA / MBA, ACCA, FRM, FCMA Fifteen years
Mr. Ali Khan Head of Product Development CFA/FRM/MBA Fourteen years
Mr. Ali Asghar Head of Research CFA /MBA Thirteen years
Mr. Zohaib Saeed AVP Fixed Income CFA/ACCA Ten years

26.2 The Fund Manager of the Fund is Mr. Faizan Saleem. Other funds being managed by the Fund Manager are as
follows:

- Meezan Islamic income Fund; and
- Meezan Fixed Term Fund.
- Meezan Cash Fund.

27 MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The dates of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Management Company of the Fund and the attendance of
its members are given below:

Meeting held on

Name of Directors Designation July4, August || October || February || February || February || April15,
2023 71,2023 13,2023 2,2024 9,2024 29,2024 2024

Mr. Ariful Islam * Director Yes Yes Yes No No No No
Mr. Irfan Siddiqui 2 Director No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Mohammad Shoaib * Ex-Chief Executive Officer Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No
Mr. Muhammad Abduliah Ahmed * Director Yes No No No No No No
Mr. Moin M. Fudda ¢ Director No No No Yes Yes Yes No
Mr. Furquan Kidwai Director Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Mubashar Magbool * Director Yes No No No No No No
Mr. Tariq Mairgj Director Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Naeem Sattar ! Director Yes Yes Yes No No No No
Mr. Feroz Rizvi Director Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Ms. Danish Zuberi Director No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Saad Ur Rahman Khan © Director No No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Ms. Shazia Khurram Director No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Syed Amir Ali 7 Director No No No No No No Yes
Mr. Ahmed Igbal Rajani 2 Director No No No Yes Yes Yes Yes

¥ Mr. Ariful Islam, Mr. Muhammad Abdullah Ahmed and Mr. Naeem Sattar retired from the Board on December 31, 2023.

2 Mr. Irfan Siddiqui and Mr. Ahmed Igbal Rajani were elected on the Board vide an EOGM dated December 26, 2023.

3Mr. Mohammad Shoaib resigned from the Board effective February 29, 2024

4 Mr. Moin M. Fudda was elected on the Board vide an EOGM dated December 26, 2023 and subsequently resigned from the Board on March 14, 2024.
¥ Mr. Mubashar Magboo! resigned from the Board on July 18, 2023.

8 Mr. Saad Ur Rahman Khan was appointed on the Board with effect from August 7, 2023.

7 Syed Amir Ali was appointed on the Board with effect from April 9, 2024.
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28 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees uniess otherwise stated.
29 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management Company on
August 19, 2024

For Al Meezan Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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PERFORMANCE TABLE
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Net assets (Rs. '000) (ex-distribution)

Net assets value / redemption price per unit

as at June 30 (Rs.) (ex-distribution)
Offer price per unit as at June 30, (Rs.)
(ex-distribution)
Highest offer price per unit (Rs.)
Lowest offer price per unit (Rs.)
Highest redemption price per unit (Rs.)
Lowest redemption price per unit (Rs.)
Distribution (%)
Interim
Final
Date of distribution
Interim
Final
Income distribution (Rupees in '000)
Growth distribution (Rupees in '000)
Total return (%)

Average annual return as at June 30, 2024 (%)

2024 2023 2022

114,606,382 96,005,607 72,759,939
50.0000 50.0000 50.0000
50.0000 50.0000 50.0000
50.0000 50.0000 50.0000
50.0000 50.0000 50.0000
50.0000 50.0000 50.0000
50.0000 50.0000 50.0000
19.52 15.55 9.48
20,178,692 13,142,424 4,946,448
21.50 16.83 9.95

One Year Two Years Three Years
21.50% 19.14% 16.00%

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go

down, as well as up.






